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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT OCT 2.5 2000
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS jyicyyaer o |
EASTERN DIVISION  ctERK, g DlS-TR%::i’ng\(l)i _

CIVIL ACTION NO. 06-C-3503

U.S. COMMODITY FUTURES
TRADING COMMISSION,

Tz

Plaintiff, C~
‘ Consent Order for

Permanent Injunction and Other
Relief

v.
BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA INC.,

Defendant.

I BACKGROUND
1. On June 28, 2006, the Commodity Futures Trading Comrrﬁssion ("CoMssion"
or “CFTC”) filed its complaint against Deféndant BP Products North America Inc.. éeeking
injunctive arid other equitable relief, including a civil monetary penalty, for Violationé’ of the
'Conllmodity Excﬁange Act, as amended (the “Act”), as amended (the “Act”), 7 U.S.C. §§ 1 et
seq. (2002) (the “Complaint”). |
2. - In particular, the Complaint alleges that Defendant BP Products North America
.Inc. (“BP” or “Defendant™), by and through its emialoyees; engaged in acts and praétices that
constitute violations of the Act. In short, BP unlawfully attempted to ma'mipul'ate and did
B ma‘.m'puiate the price of F ebrﬁary 2004 TET.phy'sical propane by cornering the market for
February 2004 TET physical propane. Further, BP also attempted to manipulate the price of
April 2003 TET physical propane, again by séeking to corner the Apﬁl 2003 TET physical

 propane market.




- IL CONSENTS AND AGREEMENTS |

3. BP hereby warrants and represents that the Board of Directors of BP has duly
authorlzed ina spemﬁc resolution that is attached hereto, the entry of this Consent Order by BP.
BP further agrees that the tenns and condltlons of this Order are binding upon any BP sub51d1ary -
or BP business group or entrty that operates with or prov1des services for BP (hereinafter referred
. toas “BP Ent1t1es”) in the United States.

4, BP agrees that in the event it sells, merges, or transfers all or substantially all of |
its business operations or any part lof the trading operations as.they exist as of the date ef this.
Order, whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a stock or asaet sale, merger, or transfer, they sh.all _
r'nclude in any contract for sale, merger or transfer a provision binding the purchaser('s) or any
suceessor(s) in interest thereto to the obligations described in-thi.s Order. |

| 5. In order to dispose of all the claims and issues raised in the Complaint and to
reach a full and final settlement between the narties without a trial on the merits or further
judicial proceedings, BP: |
| a. Consents to the entry of this Consent Order of Permanent Injunctjon and

Other Relief (“Order”); |

b. - Affirms that it has read and agreed to this Order voluntanly, and that no
threat, or promise other than as set forth spe01ﬁca11y herein, has been made by the Commrssron
or any member, officer, agent or representatlve thereof, or by any other person to induce consent
to this Order,

c. Acknowledges service of the Summons and Complaint;

d. - Admits that this Court has jurisdiction over it and the subject matter of this

. action pursuant to Section 6¢ of the Act, 7U.S.C. § 13a-1;



e. Adrnlts that venue properly lies with this Court pursuant to Sectlon 6¢ of
the Act, 7 U. S C. § 13a-1;

f.°  Waives:

B AII clalms ‘which may be avallable under the Equal Access to .
Justice Act (“EAJA”),5U.S.C. § 504 and 28 US.C. § 2412 (2000) relating to, or arising from,
this action and any nght under EAJA ro seek costs, fees and other expenses relating to, or arising
from this actidn;
ii. . Any claim of Doub]e J eopardy based upon the institution of this
proceeding or the entry 1n this proceeding of any order imposing a‘ civil'monetary penalty or any o
other relief; and |
rii. Any rights of appeal from this Order;

g Consents'- to the continued jn'n'sdiction of this Court for the purpose of
- enforcing the terms and con_diti_ons_ of this Order, to essnre compliance with the Order, and for
ény other purposes relevant to this case; |

h. Agrees that neither it nor any of its agents or employees under its authority -
or ‘control shall take any action or make any pub]ie statement denying, directly or indirectly, -any
allegation.in the Complaint or findings or conclusions .in the Order, or creating, or tending to
| create, the impression that the Compiaint or this Order is.Without a factual basis; provided,
| however that nothmg in this provision shall affect BP’s (i) testimonial obligations, or (ii) rlght to
take legal positions in other proceedlngs to Whlch the Commission is not a party. BP shall take
all necessary steps to ensure that all ofits agents or employees understand and comply wit}r rhis

Order. Should BP issue a press release in connection with this Order or the ongoing civil and




criminal inyesti gations of the propane market, BP shall provide the text of the press release to the
Commission at least twenty-four hours before its public release.

6. By consenting to the entry of this Order, BP neither admits nor denies the
allegations of the Complaint or the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law contained in this . -
Order, except as to jurisdiction and yenue, which it admits. However, BP agrees, and the parties
to -this Order intend, that the allegations of the Complaint and the Findings of Fact made by this
. Court shall be taken as true and correct and given preclusrve effect ‘without further proof, in any
proceeding in bankruptcy or to enforce the terms of this Order. BP shall prov1de 1mmed1ate
- notice to this Court and the Commission via certified mail of any bankruptcy proceeding ﬁled
by, on hehalt of, or against it, and shall provide immedi-ate notice of any change of address,

telephone number, or contact information.

Compliance & Ethics Program

7. BP represents that it has implemented and will continue to implement a -
comphance and ethics program de31gned to detect and prevent V1olat10ns of the Commodity
Exchange Act 7US.C. § 1, et seq., by any BP d1rector officer, employee or agent in accord
with the general standards outlined in Section 8B2. 1 of the Federal Sentencing Gurde]ines for

Orgamzations which deﬁnes an Effective Comphance and Ethics Program, In particular BP

- represents that it has undertaken or agrees that it will undertake the steps set forth in

Attach:ment A.
8.. - BP’s failure to comply with the conditions and requ1rements set forth in

Attachment A will constitute a breach of this Consent Order and the Commission may Institute a

contempt action or any other action it is authonzed to commence against BP for such failure.



Independent Monitor

9. BP, the CFTC, and the U.Ss. Department of Justice, Fraud Section (the
.“Department”) shall use mutual best efforts te identify a mutnally acceptable person, who,
' subject to the approval of the ‘Coun, shall serve as the Monitor.

10.  BP, the BP Entities and their direc'tors?rofﬁcers, employees, and agents shall -
cooperate fully with the Monitor, as further described in Attachment B.

.11. . BP’s, the BP Entities’ and their directors’, ofﬁcers;, employees’, and agents’ failure
to comply with the conditions and requirements set forth in Attachment B iwill constitute a breach
of this _C'onsent Order and the Commission may institite a contempt action or any other action it is
authorized to comrnence against BP for such failure. -

Coop eraﬁen

12.  Fora period of three (3) years commencing upon the Court’s entry of this Consent
Order, BP and the BP Entities agree to cooperate fully with the Conﬂmission, the Department, an
1ndependent monitor (described in “Attachment B”), any reglstered ent1ty as that phrase is |
deﬁned m7U.S.C. §1a(29) or any “self-regulatory orgamzat10n as that phrase is defined in 17
C.F.R. § 1.3(ce), as directed by the Commission or the Department, and an independent monitor
(described in Attachment B), whenever any such entity, agency, or monitor investigates whether
BP, the BP Entities, or any of their directors, ofﬁcers; ernployees, agents or consultants may have : -
(1) engaged in any potential act of manipulation,' attempted manipulation, cor_nering, or attempted
cornering re]atmg to the price of a “commodity,” as commodity is defined in Section l(a) of the

: CEA, in lnterstate commerce, or for future delivery; (2) knowmg]y delivered or caused to be

delivered any false, misleading, or knowmgly inaccurate information that could tend to affect the



price of a commodity in interstate commerce; and/or (3) made any false or misleading statements
- to any reglstered entity (collectively referred to as “Mampulatlve Conduct”). BP and the BP |
Entltles agree that their cooperation shall include, but is not limited to, the followmg

a..  BPand the BP Entities shall truthfully disclose all information with
respect to the activities of BP and the BP Entities directors, eﬂicers, employees, agents or.
B cOnsultants, concerning all maﬁeré relating to any alleged Manipulative Conduct, about which
BP, the BP Entities or their directors, officers, employees, agents or consultants have any
knowledge or abeut wh:ieh the Commission or Department shall inquire. ‘BP and the BP Entities
shall be deemed to “have any knowledge” of alleged Manipulative Conduct when infermation
about suc}’t alleged Manipulative Conduct is known to a representative from any BP 1egat
division, a representative of a BP compliance grdup, or any individual responsible for the
supervision of trading managers or his or her supefvisor(s). This obli gation ef truthful .diselo;sure
includes the obligation of BP and the BP Entities to provide to the Commission, the Department,
or any agency designated by the Department or the Commission, upon request any document,
record, or other tanglble evidence relating to such Manlpulatlve Conduct and internal compliance
controls about which the Commission shall inquire of BP or the BP Entities.

t). Upon request of the Commission or the Department, with respect to any
isSue relevant to Manipulative Conduct or internal comp]iance controls, BP and the.BP Entities
shall designate knowledgeable employees, agents, or attorneys to provide to the Cornmission or
the Depaltment the 1nformat10n and materials described in Paragraph 12(a) above, on behalf of
BP and the BP Ent1t1es Itis further understood that BP. and the BP Entities must at all tlmes

prov1de complete, truthful, and accurate information. .




C. With respect to any issue relevant to the Commission’s-or Depaﬂmenf’s
7' investigation of anylalleged Manipnlative Conduct, BP and the BP Entities shall use reasonable
efforts to make avaﬂable for interviews or testimony, as requested by the Commission or the
Department, cnrrent or former directors, officers, employees, agenfs and consultants of BP or the
BP Entities, or any ef their cu.rrent. or former subsidiaries, afﬁliates, or parent companies. This
undertaking also includes identification of witnesses who, to the knowledge of BP, may have
material information regarding the matters under investigétion.

.d. . With respect to any informanon, testimeny, docnment, record, or other
tangible evidence provided to the Commission or the Department pursuant. to this Order, BP and
the BP Entities consent to any and all disclosures to other government agencies, whether
agencies of the United Statesr or a foreign government, as the Department and the COmrnission
shall deem appropriate pronided that prior to providing any information, fhe Comﬂssion' will
seek reasonable assurances -from the agency or foreign government that it will ebide by the terms
of this Agreemenf and keep the information confidential except as may be necessary to discharge

its official duties.

III.  FINDINGS OF FACT. AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

13.  The Court, being fully advised in the prernises, ﬁnds that there is good cause for
the entry of this Order and that there is no just reason for delay. The Court therefore directs the
| entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusions.of Law, and a perménent injunction and ancillary felief -
~ pursuant to § ec of the Act, 7U.S.C. § 13a-1, es set forth herein. -
I. | Introductien

14. Frorn February 5, 2004, through March 12, 2004, employees of subsidiaries of BP

or the BP entities (hereinafter collectively referred to as “BP”) conspired to manipulate the



| February 2004 propane market for propane transported in the TEPPCO pipeline system '
| (hereinafter referred to as “TET” propane). As aresult, the price of TET propane was art1ﬁ01a1 '
and inflated from F ebruary 12, 2004 through March 2, 2004, |
15. Im accordance with the plan, the employees used the ﬁnanc1al resources of BP to

buy contracts for substantlally all of the February 2004 TET propane supply to become the
dominant owner, or “long-holder,” of TET propane. The employees at specific times thereaﬂer,
withheld supply from the market while continuing to purchase contracts to own more than the
supply of TET propane in the TEPPCO. -system. BP’s dommant ownership position, continued
purchases of said propane subsequent to obtaining such a position, and withholding of supply at
specific tlmes thereafter, all distorted and made artlﬁcral the price of TET propane during
February 2004. Asa resnlt of the employees conduct, by the end of February 2004, BP acquired
ownership of substantially all of th_e_évailab]e supply of F ebruary 2004 TET propane. in the

~ United States.v The employees executing the plan thus cornered the market for February 2004
‘ TET propane, distorted and made artificial the price of February 2004 TET propane, and sold a
_portion of the supply at an artificial and 1nﬂated price. -

II. Background .

A. TET Propa_ne Market
16. Propane is a natural gas liquid (“NGL”). 'Propane is used by petrochemical

industries to produce plastics and is also used as a sonrce of energy for residential and
commercial purposes. Residentierl and commercial demand for propane is seasonal. Typically,
propane inven'tory»levels are built up during the spring and summer. Then, during the winter

heating season, propane consumption is high, resulting in lower inventory levels at the end of the

-heating season inF ebrnznyand March. .



17.  Residential and commercial consumpti_bn of propane is greatest in the Northeast
and Midwest sections of the United States. Theprimary means by which propane is delivered to

these regions is the Texas Eastern Products Pipeline Company, LLC (“TEPPCQO”) pipeline

system, which is the only pipeline transporting propane from the TEPPCO storage facility in

Mont Belvied, Texas, to the Northeast and Midwest. Propane in the TEPPCO system is
identiﬁed as TET propane. Propane in etorage facilities at Mont Belvieu that is not maintained
by TEPPCO or transported in the TEPPCO pipeline is. referred to las “non-TET” propane.

| 18. TET propane isa comrnodity as deﬁned in Title 7, Um'tedStates Code, Section
1(a)(4), and TET r)ropane that flows tbrough the TEPPCO_ pipeline crosses yan'ous states. TET
propane is a comrnodity in interstate cornmerce.

19. TET propane is predomlnantly traded “over-the-counter” in one of three ways: (1)

: d1rect b11ateral transactions between two parties; (2) voice broker transactlons and (3) electromc

transactions on ttle “Chalkboard” tradlng platform." In voice broker transactlons, the brokers:
negotiate and execute deals on behalf of a buyer and seller. In Chalkboard transac.tions, buyers
and sellers post anonymous bids and oft‘ers on an electronic website, Chalkboard, and only learn
the counterparty’sjdentity when the transaction is completed. Propane sales-are generally traded
in lots of 1,000 barrels‘(bbls-) and each. bartrel is the equivalent of 42 gallons of propane.

-20.  Propane prices are published by the Oil Price Information Service (“OPIS”). The

prices published by OPIS are spemﬁc to the type of propane such as TET propane, and the

month or hme period for which the propane is to be delivered. Generally, a price is published for

the current (or “prompt™) month, the next (or “forward”) month and for delivery the next day.

Propane traders trade TET propane contracts based upon these dehvery drstlnctrons .

' During all times relevant to this Statement of Facts, Chalkboard was owned by Chemconnect, Inc. |



21.  OPIS also pubhshes average” prices, such as “daily average” and “monthly
average,” based on information collected d1rectly from market participants. An OPIS “da11y
~ average” price consists of the mean between the lowest and the highest reported pn'ces on a given
day. Parties' sometimes trade propane based on a “daily” or “monthly” average price as published
by OPIS. - As a result, OPIS pn'ces published for TET propane can affect the pn'ce paid by'both
commodity traders and end users for many categories of propane in the Mldwest and Northeast
including, but not 11m1ted to, the Dlstnct of Columbla and Illinois. |

B. Corporat_e Organization and Structure

22. | Within and across the corporate structure of BP, there were a number of groups,
business units, and teams that focused on specific aspects of the companies’ business. These
groups and.business units were not separate legal entities but rather existed within and across
| various BP legal entities.

23.  The organizational group responsible on a globai basis for overseeing trading -
activity was the Integrated Supply & Trading (“IST”) group. Within IST there were a number of
regional business units The regional busmess unit responsible for the trading of gas and power
products including propane, in North America was North America Gas & Power (“NAGP”)
During 2003 and 2004, the team w1th1n NAGP focused on the tradlng of natural gas liquids, -

' 1nclud1ng propane, was known as the NGL trading bench (“NGL Trading Bench” or “Bench”) '

24. A separate regional business unit responsible for the production transportation, '
and sales of natural gas 11qu1ds including propane in North Amerlca was the Natural Gas

Liquids Busmess Unit (“NGLBU”)

10



C.  The NGL Trading Bench

25. | During Febr-t.;ary 2004, the NGL Trading Bench Was located in Houston, Texas.,
and employed approximately eight traders. All of the members of the NGL Trading Bench were
employees of BP'ArheIica Production Comﬁany, reporting to managers and other eiecutives who
were employed by other BP America subsidiaries. The NGL Trading Bench entered into
contracts to purchase an(i sell propane on behalf of BP ‘Products Noﬁh Ameﬁca. Inc.

26. Once a contraét was executed; a confirmation notice was sent to the counterparty,
via the mails and wires of the United States, between BP’s ofﬁceé .in Texas or Ilinois and the
_ Various_ bounterparties’ offices which were iocatc;d in Texas, Illinoié, New York, and elsewheré.

27.  BPrecorded the NGL Trading Bench traders’ telephone communicatidhs.,
Traders had stations on‘ the‘bench .with sepafate telephone lines. The_traders were aware that their
~ conversations were recorded on those teiephon_eé.

28.  The NGL Tfading Bench purchased and ‘sdld propane for use in BP’s wholesale
and petrochémical ;businesses,.arid for speculative pur’pvoses to generate a profit. |

| | 29.  BP Trader #1 was the primary trader respdnsible for trading TET pfopane from at

least January 2003 to April 2005, | | |

30.  Dennis N. Abbott was another trader on the NGL Trading‘Bencrh during. the
relevant time pen'oa. Ab‘bott’s pﬁﬁmy-résponsibiliw involved the trading of heavy NGLs such
as butané, and as the need arose, light NGLs, such as propane and other commodities.

31.  BP Trader #2 was a trader primarily responsibie for trading ethane and other
NGLS, as well as propane, during 2003 and 2004. During February 2004, BP Trader #2 -assis'ted:

with the trading of TET propane and aided in the execution of the manipulation scheme.
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32. BP Trader #3 was primarily responsible for trading other categories of propane
during 2003 and 2004, but also traded TET propane during the relevant tiﬁe period.

33.  The direct supervisor of the traders on the NGL Trading thch was the “bench
leader” (“BP Bench Leédef”). The BP Bench Leader’s rgsponsibilities included the development
and oversight of the.NGL Trading Bench’s trading strategies, and r_eporting to and seeking
-approval from executives who oversaw the NGL Trading Bench;s trading operatiéns.

34. The BP Bench Leader reported to a Vice President responsible for supervisihg
BP’s trading in NGLs (“BP Executive #17). BP Executive #1 Waé an employee of BP America
Production Company. |

35. BP Exe(;utive #1 reported to the Chief Ope'rating Officer of NAGP (“BP
Executive #2"). BP Exécufive #2 .ﬁas responsible, among other things, for the development,
implementation, and execution of trading and marketing étrategies forfNAGP and waé an
employee of BP International Services Company.

36. BP EXecﬁtive #2 reported to the Chief Executive Officer or Business Unit Leader
of NAGP (“BP Executive #3”). BP Executive #3 was an employee_ of BP International Services
Company. |

37. A BP Compliance Managef for NAGP (“BP Compiianqe Manéggr”) sat on the
NAGP trading floor and was an employee of BP America Produétion Company. |

III.- 2003 TET Propane Manipulation A'_tfempt
38.. The BP Bench Leader and members of the NGL Trading Bench conspifed to |
manipulate the price of TET propane during February 2004 based, in part, upon information and

experience gained in April and May of 2003 when members of the NGL Trading Bench

attempted to manipulate the price of April 2003 TET propane. During April 2003, the NGL

12



Trading Bench attempted to corner April 2003 TET propane by taking a large long position.

Through this strategy, the NGL Tréding Bench members sought to make money by purchasing

substantially all of the available April TET propane supply, and Sought to hold those barrels untili

the price increased based on the resulting lack of supply and then sell the barrels to market shorts.

39. Duringa conversation on April 12, 2003 between BP Ti‘ader #1, Abbbtt, and the

BP Bench Leader stated:
Abbott: How does it feel taking on the whole mﬁrket, vman?
BP Trader #1: Whew.-_ It’s pretty big man.

Abbott: . Dude, you’re the entire f{***}ing propane market.
- | * %
BP Bench Leader: ~ Don’t worry about it, it’s the first two days of the
: month. Plenty of lead time for people to think that
barrels will emerge and _take'a short position.

- Abbott: No, I meaﬁ, it’s cool, 100% of the opén- interest in
propane probably, and uh 3% of the open interest in
nat gas....I dig it, it just, sometimes its hard, it just
Jeels hard to take on the whole market sometimes.

(emphasis added).

40.  Based on the April 2003 attempt to manipulate the price of TET propane,
members of the NGL Trading Bench booked a profit and learned information that they later used
during the February 2004 manipulation strategy. ) In‘particulaf, the NGL Trading Bench learned
what they believed to be the “dead stock™ level of TET propane, or the “minimum operating

level” needed for the TEPPCO pipeline to function. The traders’ perception of the dead stock

level, later coupled with knowledge of the total TEPPCO propane inventory, led the NGL

Trading Bench to believe they_could estimate thetotéli size of the available physical supply of

13



TET propane, thereby allowing them to estimate the total amount of physical contracts they
would have te purchase to cornet February 2004 TET propane and effectuate a manipulation.

| 41.  On or about February 5, 2004, the BP Bench Leader and Abbott diScuseed the
attempt to mantpulate or “squeeze” the price of Aprit 2003 TET propane and the dead st'oc_k
information they gleaned from the prior attempt stating:

- BP Bench Leader:  The second point is, that I would imagine that the
' ‘ minimum operating level at the end of Feb[ruary] is
“higher than it is at the end of March or April

because I think the wholesalers have to hold barrels.
So I think the minimum level might be a little
higher than we're assuming based on what we
experienced in April when we squeezed the April
May. '

Abbott: , - Right, which was one of the reasons why it was
' harder to own all that April. That's why we had to
take on a little bit more than we thought we had to
take on, in April. And that's why I think that 2 mm,
2.1 mm barrels as that minimum in Feb., I think -
that's real, man, I think that is, that's the bottom at
TET.
(emphasis added).
IV. 2004 Propane Manipulation
42.  During February 2004, members of the NGL Trading Bench developed a plan to
- manipulate the price of February 2004 TET propane by becoming the dominant owner of
February 2004 TET propane. As explained below, the strategy was intended to force other
market participants holding short positions in TET propane at the end of February to purchase '
F ebruary 2004 TET propane from BP at an art1ﬁe1al and inflated price. Between approx1mately
F ebruary 9, 2004 and F ebruary 27, 2004 members of the NGL Trading Bench executed the

manipulation scheme by buying almost all of the available February TET supply in the TEPPCO

14



system, withholding that supply duﬁng the month, and selling a portion of the supply later in the
month, to certain ceunterparties helding short positions at artificial and inﬂated prices. |
43.  DuetoBP’s conduct from 'approximately February 12 2004 through
approx1mate1y March 2, 2004, the price of February TET propane was artificial and inflated by
BP s conduct.
| A; The Scheme |
44.  During January 2004, the BP Beneh Leader identified and discussed conditions
relating to the TET propane mark.et that Would- render the market ripe for manipnlation. On or
about January 8, 2004 during a regularly scheduled call the BP Bench Leader stated to other
employees located in Texas, I]ltnois, and elsewhere that the TET propane market was “vulnerable
toa squeeze.” |
45. In addition, on or about January 13, 2004, the BP Bench Leader stated to another
employee that February 2004 TET propane in the short term was “tight enough that if someone
wanted to play garnes with i, potentially they could.” | The BP Bench Leader further stated that if
vson'leone .wanted “to get a hold of this [TET propane] market and play some games with it” they
could. | | |
| 46..  On or about Febnjary 5, 2004, during a conversation with Ahbott the BP Bench
‘Leader articulated the intent of the February 2004 TET trading strategy and the Justlﬁcatlon
necessary for obtaining approval for the strategy |
Two things I thought of. One, in terms of whether we shoutd do this or
not, in terms of talking to [BP Executive #1], what we stand to gain, is not
just we'd make money out of it, but we would know from thereafter that

- we can control the market at will. If we never break the threshold, we'll
never know what the answer is, you know what I mean?

(emphas1s added)

15



47. Dunng January 2004 and the begmmng of February 2004, the BP Bench Leader
also 1nstructed the NGL Tradln g Bench to amass a significant position in February TET propane
- both contracts for dehvery of physical barrels as well as financial or “swap” contracts. By the
estimate of BP Executive #1, entering February 2004, BP owned contracts-for delivery for nearly
50% of all of the available physical February TET propane.'

48.  Members of the NGL Trading Bench intended to earn a significant profit for BP
by selling a portion of their February 2004 TET propane at the end of the month at prices inﬂated
| by their conduct, and then takin g a small loss on the remaining barrels which would be carried
into March. As such,' the NGL Trading Bench recognized that they would purchase more
propane than BP needed for its own business or commercial purposes, o_r could actively sell to
counterparties during February. Furthermore, the NGL'Trad:ing Bench members could expect to
profit personally by _obtaining bonuses and other remuneration as a result of the anticipated
profits BP would achieve through their market manipulation. |

B. E'xecution of the Schem.e: Buy, Withhold, and Sell

1.. The NGL Trading Bench’s Attempt to Buy All Available Supply

49. ‘Between on or about February 5, 2004 and on or about February 9, 2004 the BP
Bench Leader d1rected the execution of the manlpulatlon scheme by 1nstruct1ng BP Trader #1,
Abbott, BP Trader #2, and BP Trader #3 to buy asi gmﬁcant amount of February 2004 TET
- propane without arousing the euspicion of other market p_articipants.

50. On the afternoon of February 9, 2004, the BP Bench Leader spoke to BP Trader
#1 and Abbott to check the progress of the scherne During the conversatlon the BP Bench

Leader, BP Trader #1, and Abbott stated:

 BP Bench Leader What ] been going on'7

16



' ‘BP Trader #1:

- BP Bench Leader:

BP Trader #1:

BP Bench Leader:

Abbott:

How much we got on? 1 was just looking at that,
you wanna guess? 3.1 [million bbls].

Has it been busy today?

Oh yeah. Did it very quietly. 10 lots, 5 lots, 10

lots, 15 here, 5 here. The biggest lot I think was 75.

* * *

Did you feel good about it? |

I kinda characterize it as . . . I characterize it as I
was kinda surprised we were able to get 300 from
the marketplace, basically, maybe 3-400 from the
marketplace, without moving it that much. I mean

-we definitely were moving it [the price of TET

propane] at the end of the day, it was definitely
firming up at the end of the day . . . Soit’s kinda. . .
it seems like something that will just kinda move
fairly easily. '

51. Later; during the same telephone call on February 9, 2004, the same traders

 discussed the plan to continue to purchase largé_ QUantities of TET piropane:

Abbott:

BP Bench Leader:

I mean tomorrow, tomorrow if we are able to buy another
4-500 [thousand] barrels tomorrow -from the marketplace, I

‘would be genuinely shocked. I mean, really shocked so .

that’s it. Then I think . . . we’ll just have to play a wa1t1ng
game and see, you know, how it’s gonna shape up.

It, um, still remains to be seen, doesn’ tlt? Still need to see -

some of these shorts come in .

52.  Finally, during the same February 9, 2004 telephone call, the traders identify the

true nature of the scheme as one to “squeeze™ other market participants:

 BP Bench Leader:

Half of me is saying, look, the fact that nothing’s really

‘moved in terms of the spread yet is good, because people
- aren’t looking for ways out . . . alternative feeds, or backing
__out demand, so_that’s kind. of a'good. thing. The down side

is, of course, if it all happens at the last minute, it gets a bit
messy. People start cheating, not delivering, and may start .
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to look a little bit funny as well that the spread you know,
- just erupts at the last Imnute

BP Trader #1: And we don’t get the price out on all this paper [financial

or “swap” contracts)].
Abbott: Well, that’s a different, thmg, if we don t get a price out on
' all this paper.

BP Bench Leader:  The advantage of paper, is that we’re selling at.an index
price there’s no complaints. If we squeeze it in the last
Jour or five days of the month, ah, forgive my French, but
" ah, you know, it’s going to be hard to say what’s the fair
price of the market at the time.
(emphasis added).
53.  Based on the activities of the BP Bench Leader, and BP Trader #1, Abbott, BP
Trader #2, and BP Trader #3, between the moming of February 9, 2004 and the close of business
of February 13, '2004,.the NGL Trading Bench purchased contracts for an additional 1.4 million
barrels of February 2004 TET propane. As a result, at the close of business on February 13,
2004, the position of the NGL Trading Bench exceeded 3 million barrels of physical propane, in |
addition to a volume equivalent to approximately 480,000' barrels in “paper” or financially settled
propane contracts.
54. As of February 13, 2004 the NGL Tradmg Bench estimated that BP’s pOSlthIl
then exceeded the volume of TET propane supply in the TEPPCO system. Additional
waterbome 1mports or other s sources could increase the supply, and dehvery from the storage '
fac111ty through the p1pe]1ne to end users could reduce supply durin g the month. Therefore the
NGL Trading Bench continued to monitor the TEPPCO mventory level. The traders on the NGL

~ Trading Bench frequently dlscussed these inventory levels and also their estimates of the “dead

stock,” or minimum amount of propane needed for the_plpe]me to operate.
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- 55, On approximately February 15, 2004, factors unanticipated by the NGL Trading
Bench caused the price of TET propane to decrease and the amount of a\}ailable TET propane to”
increase. First, on February 15, 2004, the TEPPCO pipeline ruptured near Coschocton, Ohio,
-causing a sn_spension in the delivery of propane until the pipeline was repaired. The rupture
caused the amount of propane stored in Mont Belvien, Texas to accnmulate and decreased the
amount of propane that could be delivered from the pipeline. Second, weather forecasts around
that time.changed and une)rpectedly indicated warmer weather in the-Northeast, reducing the
demand and expected demand of TET propane. Third; on February 17, 2004, BP received a
published report from Commercial Services Company, Ltd. which forecast approximately 4.2
million barrels of propane destined for the United States rzia cargo ship in February 2004. This
represented an increase in the amount of propane being imported into the United States.
Combined, these factors put doanard pressure on the price throughout the rernainder of the
.month.
56. Becanse the NGL Trading Bench had already purchased such a large quantity of
‘February TET propane, by February 17, _2(5'04, the NGL Trad_ing Bench anticipated a sign_iﬁcant
loss of money if they began to unwind,‘ or sell, their position at the prevai]ing price or if prices
dropped further from the then- ex1st1ng Jevels. Neveﬂhe]ess the NGL Tradmg Bench
accumulated even more TET propane |
57; Between F e_bruary 17, 2004 and February 20, 2004, the NGL Trading Bench
purchased a substantial amount of additional contracts for more than 1.4 million barrels of -
: physrcal February 2004 TET propane. By February 20, 2004, BP’ S posmon exceeded the TET .

propane in the TEPPCO system by approxrmate]y 1 million barrels
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58. | Between February 20, 2004, and February 29, 2004, the TEPPCO system propane
inventory continued to increase. At various times duriné that period, BP’s pésition in February
TET propane also increased. During the laét trading week of the month, VB-P"s position reached
approximately 5 million barrels of physical TET propane. From approximately FeBruary 17, - |
2004 through .the last tfading day of the»montth, February 27, 2004, BP’s position exceeded the
TEPPCO systerh inyentory.

2. Selective Withholding of Supply
59. At certain times dﬁring late February, members of fhe NGL Trading Bench
refused to sell physical TET propane to counterparties as part of their strétegy to drive up the
| price. Acting at the directioﬁ of the BP Bench Leader, rthe traders at cer_tain times refused to show |
offéfs or sell any of BP’s TET propane, even though EP held coﬁtracts for delivéry of millions of
ban'els,‘and in at least one instance a counterparty had offered “best bid.”i

60.  For example, on F ebfuary 23, 2004, BP Trader #1 stated to a counterparty:

' » Co_unterparty: Can you use any D};negy propane?
BP Trader #1: era.
Countérparty: | ~ Do you have any TET you can sell?
BP Trader #1: Thbught you were -a-skin'g me about Dynegy.
Counterparty: Well I am. T got a.g.uy who wants to sell Dynegy

and buy TET. Do you have any TET you-can sell?
BP Trader #1: Not right now, I don't, but I'll take the Dynegy side.
- At the time BP Trader #1 refused to sell, BP’s position exceeded 4 million physical barrels.

61.  Similarly, on F ebruary 26, 2004, BP Trader #2 stated to a counterparty:

didn’t know if you guys were selling or not.
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" BP Trader #2: No we’re not right now, actually.

* * *

Counterparty: If you guys de01ded to-come back in; I’'m the best
' bid at five.

- At the time of this conversation, BP he]d contracts for delivery of approximately 4.9 million
barrels of February TET propane. _
62.  BP did not offer or sell physical barrels of propane on February 26, 2004, but
continued to purchase even more TET bropane tiuring the day. |
3. The NGL Tradmg Bench Sells at an Inﬂated Price
63. At the beglnnlng of February 27 2004 the last trading day of the month, BP held
contracts for dehvery of approx1mately 4.9 mﬂhon barrels of February TET propane. The NGL
Tradlng Bench began the day by buying additional barrels of F ebruary TET propane before 9:00
a.m. from the remammg counterparnes who still had barrels to sell. Th]S meant that a]though BP
already owned contracts for more than the dehverable supply of February TET propane on the
last trading day of the month, they bought more in an effort to ensure that they would be the only
comr)any in the market that could sell signiﬁcant quantities of TET propane. By the end of the
day, BP sold approximately 530,000 physical barrels of its accumulated February-TET propane
position. BP had to accept dehvery of the remalnmg 4.4 million barrels and carry them into
March at a 31gmﬁcant loss. , » .
. 64. - By mid-morning on February 27,- 2004 'the,price for TET propane was not the
result of legltlmate forces of supply and demand, but was dictated by BP. Certain counterpartles ,

had no ablhty to bargam that day, but instead had to pay the pnces set by BP:

BP Trader #1: [Company Al buys 25,000.at... 89 S

Voicebroker: .89. Where’s your next? .89 and a half?
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65.

BP Trader #1:

Voicebroker:

'BP Trader #1:

Voicebroker:

BP Trader #1:

' Voicebroker:'

Later in the morning on February 27,2004, BP Trader #1 stated to a Voicebroker:

Voicebrok_er:

BP Tradef #1:

Voicebroker:

BP Trader #1:;

Voi'cebrdker:
BP Trader #1:

Voicebroker: -

BP Trader #1:

Voicebroker:

BP Trader #1

Voicebroker:

.89 and a half,

Alright. .89 and a half, next...

.are you just Walking
them up half step? -

‘Now. B

For now you are?
Yes. .

89 and half 1s next, his next offer 1S coming in a
penny hlgher

Hey, um, do you have an offer‘7 I got .90 bid by
[Company C] ,

_Uh, .905.
-905. Can you hang one second? [Talking on
another line]. . . .905, he's about to hang up.

'No I'm not. Don't make me feel hke the bad . guy

here.

Would you do 50 [thousand bai-rels].

502 I'l do 50.

~He'll do 50. [Company D7’s telling him to buy it

because there's nobody else out here that has any
but you. F*** what's it gonna go to [BP Trader

'#1 ]2 A buck?
* Don't tell him you said that.

I didn't tell him that.

* * *
Everything you‘ say is recorded on all these lines.

Thear you
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66.  Further, in addition to the telephone sales, on certain.occasions, BP was acti}vely
dictating the price of sales through the use of Chalkboard. During periods when there were
relatively few sellers ot‘ February 2004 TET propane in the market, members of the NGL Tradin g
Bench posted both bids and offers on Chalkboard. At regular 1ntervals and usually after a smgle
transactron in the market occurred, the members of the NGL Tradlng Bench, often workingina
highly coordinated fashion, would withdraw the bids and offers and increase both the bids and the
offers, thereby effectively “stepping up the pn'ce'.” |

67. On February 27,2004, a counterparty located in the Northern District of lllinois
holding a short position in February TET propane was forced to buy from BP at an artlﬁcial and

inflated price:

Counterparty: - We Just did a deal on Chalkboard do you want to
' do another 57
Abbott: - Another five, hold on . . . we’re at .925 for 5
[thousand bbls] '
Counterparty: Holy smokes' Okay. What's going on? Just people
~ like me out there trying to find this?
Abbott: Yeah.
Counterparty: ~ Well crap, I may have to, I gotta do something here.
925 is it?
Abbott: Yep
Counterparty: . Jesus Christ, I don't have a choice do 12 Not really?
Abbott: | Not if you need to cover.
- Counterparty: I'need to cover, why don't we go ahead and do that..

68. . After selling concluded on F ebruary 27,2004, the NGL Trad1ng Bench had not

‘sold enough to make a proﬁt and had to take dehvery of the remaining barrels ata s1gmﬁcant
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“loss. Inan effort to mitigate these losses, in March 2004, the bench members refused to accept |
“late” .deliven'es and required counterparties that were “caught short” in their position from
February to financially settle such contracts by paying the F ebruary 27 OPIS hrgh price, which

.had been artificial and inflated by BP. |

C. Market Reaetion and Industry Reports
69.  Members of the NGL Trading Bench knew that counterparties-and market
observers were makmg allegations that someone was attemptmg a.short squeeze, and that some
suspected BP. BP Trader #1, Abbott, BP Trader #2, and BP Trader #3 were each confronted by
market participants wrth allegat10ns that BP was involved in a “short squeeze.”
| 70.. - On February 23 2004, OPIS published a newsletter that 1ncluded the following:

The gas 11qu1ds market is largely focused on the antics of Mt. Belvreu
propane. Prices have held a strong tone as traders gossip about the
possibility that a short squeeze is being put in play in the TET market.
The short squeeze could be complicating the efforts of some to price
inbound cargos of propane, traders add. Indeed, TET propane “anys”
traded from 72-75.375cts/gal through the morning. Non-TET barrels were
worked from 67-69.375cts/gal. In contrast, the Conway propane market
has been quiet with confirmed deals holding a 61.25-61. 75cts/gal range.
Bushton barrels are thought to be tradlng at a 1-2cts/gal discount to
Conway.

(emphasis added).
71. On February 24, 2004 OPIS published a newsletter that 1nc1uded the following:

In spot tradmg . the talk in the propane markets is that one or more

firms may be 1nvo]ved in a short squeeze in the TET propane market.

Traders speculate that those firms own a hefty proportion of the

inventories in TET storage and they are making sellers pay up for the ri ight

to cover. “Somebody’s got to be getting killed,” said one trader. “I hope
. nobody that owes me money.” Traders marveled at the fact that TET
- propane opened at 74 cts/gal and ended the session at 88.25 cts/gall.]
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D. BP 'Man'agement’.s .Failure to Address the Conduct -

. 72. | During and after the execution of the mampulatlon scheme, members of the NGL
Trading Bench prov1ded certain information to various BP executives and the BP Comphance
Manager. Although the conduct violated BP’s written policy, the BP Executives and Compliance
Manager failed to report this conduct to authorities, take affirmative steps to ensure such trading
strategies did not recnr, and chose not to discipline any of the traders, Managers, or the
compliance official involved until the CFTC initiated an investigation. At no time during
. February 2004 did anyone at BP bring the scheme to the attention of the legal department.

73 Initially, between February 5 and 9, 2004, the BP Bench Leader provided BP-

Executive #1 with certain information about the proposed strateéy. |
74.  On or about February 19; 2004, the BP Bench Leader met with BP Executive #1,
BP Executive #2,v and the BP Compliance Manager. At the ti}me of the meeting,- the TEPPCO
pipeline had ruptured, the NGL Trading Bench had exceeded its‘po-sition tirnit size imposed by
BP policy, BP .had accumulated contracts for over 4.5 millien barrels of February TET propane,
and the total avaﬂable supply of propane in the TEPPCO storage facility was approx1mately 3 5
-million barrels After the February 19, 2004 meetlng, the NGL Trading Bench continued to
accumu]ate February TET propane
75. Aﬁer the February strategy had concluded and the NGL Trading Bench
anticipated that the loss associated with the strategy Wou](t be approximately $1v0 million, BP
‘management institnted a business review of the trading strategy. |
76 I.n‘ preparation for the businessreview, the BP Bench Leader and BP Executive #1

caused a PowerPoint presentation entitled “Lessons Learned” to be drafted. .A purpose of the

~ “Lessons Learned” PowerPoint presentation was to determine why BP lost money and how to-
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make such a strategy proﬁtable One slide in the presentatlon compared BP’s posmon in physical -

TET propane during February to the available supplies in the TEPPCO system, and clearly

indicated that BP’s position exceeded the available supply of propane by as early as February 11,

2004. The slide also indicated that BP continued to accumulate more propane after its position

. si-gniﬁcantly exceeded the total VTEPPCO inventory. Certain slides from the “Lessons Learned”
PowerPoint were presented, again, on or about March 26, 2004, and at high level managem'ent
meetings on April 15 and July 28, 2004.

77.  Further, by at least May 5, 2004, BP Executive #3 and the BP Compliance
Manager became aware of the tape recorded conversation of February 9, 2004 in which the BP
Bench Leader used the word “s(;_[ueeze” to describe the February trading actiyity to BP Trader #1
and Abbott.

78. The conduct of the NGL Trading Bench was not self-reported to the autllorities,
nor was timely discipline.imposed on any of the -traders, managers, or the compliance official
mvolved. In fact, BP initially informed members of the NGL Trading Bench that they would .
reoeiye monetary bonuses at the end of the year. BP Executive #2 also informed the NGL
Trading Bench in early March 2004, despite the $10 million loss, that no trader would lose his or
her job. Only after a regulatory mquiry commenced in 2005 was disciplinary action taken against

~ certain 1nd1v1duals and other traders learned they would not receive the1r anticipated end of the
year bonuses.
V. | Conclusion of Law
79.  Based on the facts set forth above, BP admits that through the actions of its

employees, BP conspired to corner the market and manipulate and attempt to manipulate the price

26



of February 2004 TET propane and attempted to manipulate the price of April 2003 TET propane
contrary to Sectjons 6(c), 6(d), and 9(a)(2) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. §§ 9, 13b, and 13(a)(2).

ORDER FOR PERMAN ENT INJUNCTION

83. _ With the consent of the Commission and BP, IT IS NOW HEREBY ORDERED
THAT:
' a; BP is permanently restrained, enjoined and prohibited from directly or
indirectly engaging in any eonduct .that violates Sections 6(c), 6(d), and 9(a)(2) of the
Act, 7U.8.C. §§ 9, 13b, and 13(a)(2); including: |
1. .‘ Manipulating or attempting to manipulate the price of any commodity 1n
interstate commerce or for ﬁJture delivery on or subject to tne rules of a registered
entity; and
ii. Cornering or attempting to cornerany commodity in interstate commerce.
84.  The injunctive prows1ons of this Order shall be bmdmg upon BP, upon any |
person acting 1n. the capacity of ofﬁcer agent, servant or employee of BP, and upon any person
who receives actual notice of this Consent Order by personal service or otherwise insofar as _he '

or she is acting in active concert or participation with BP.

ORDER FOR A CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY AND OTHER ANCILLARY RELIEF

-85. With the consent of the Commission and BP, IT IS NOW HEREBY ORDERED
that BP shall comply fully with the following terms, condltrons and obligations relatm g to the

payment of restitution and a civil monetary penalty

86. Restitution: Criminal Restrtutlon is being made by BP pursuant to the terms of .
the- Deferred Prosecution Agreement BP America Inc. has entered into with the" Department of e

, Justlce Accordingly, no civil restitution award 1s required by '[h]S Order.
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87.

88.

Civil Monetary Penalty

a. A civil rrtonetary penalty in the amount of $125,000,000 is assessed

against BP, and is due and owing thirty days from the date of entry of this

Qrder.

b. Post-judgment 1nterest authonzed by Section 6¢ of the Act, 7U.S.C. §
13a-1 shall accrue begmmng on the date payment is due and shal] be

determined by using the Treasury Bill rate prevailing on the date of this

Order pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961.
c. . BP shall pay this civil monetary penalty by electronic funds

-transfer, U.S. postal money order, certified check; bank cashier’s check, or

bank money order. If payment is to be made other than by electroni¢ funds

 transfer, the payment shall be made payable to the Commodity Futures

Trading Commission and sent to the address below:

Commodity Futures Trading Commission
Division of Enforcement ,

Attn: Marie Bateman — AMZ-300 -
DOT/FAA/MMAC

6500 S. MacArthur Blvd.

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73169
Telephone: 405-954- 6569

_ If payment is to be made by electronic funds transfer BP shall contact Mane
Bateman or her successor at the above address to receive payment 1nstruct10ns and shall fully .
comply with those instructions. BP shall accompany payment of the penalty with a cover letter
that identities BP and t}te name and docket’nufnber of the proeeedings. Bf shall simultaneously

 transmit CQD]CS of the cover letter and the form. of payment to the. DJrector D1v1$1on of .

'Enforcement Commodlty Futures Tradm g Commission, Three Lafayette Centre, 1 155 21St
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Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20581, and the Chjef, Office of Cooperative Enforcement, at the
same address.
89.  BP shall comply with the settlement conditions and agreements set forth above in-

paragraphs 3 through 12, as well as the condltlons agreements and terms mcorporated by

reference in Attachments A and B of this Order.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

90.  Notices. All.notices required by this Order shall be sent by certified mail, return

receipt requested, as follows:
Notice to Plaintiff Commission:

Division of Enforcement
Commodity Futures Trading Commission
1155 21* Street, NW

- Washington, DC 20581

Notice to BP:
Stephen R. Winters
Associate Group General Counsel
BP America Inc.,200
Westlake Park Blvd., Houston, TX" 77079.

90. . Entire Agreement, Amendments and Severability. This Order incorporates all of -

thé terms and conditions of the settlement among the parties and shall not be amended except by
order of the Court.

91.  Invalidation: If any provision of this Order, or if the application of any provisions
of this Order are held to be invalid, the remainder of the Order and the applic.:ation‘of the |
provisions to any other heréon or circumstance shall not be aft“ected by the holding.

92.  Waiver: The failure of any party hereto at any. time or times to require

- performance of any provision hereof shall in no manner affect the right of such party at a later

time to enforce the same or any other provision of this Order. No waiver in one or more instances
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of the breach of any provision contained in thlS Order shall be deemed to be or construed as a
further or continuing waiver of such breach or waiver of the breach of any other provision of this
Consent Order.

93..  Continuing Jurisdiction of this Court. The Court shall retain jurisdiction of this

cause to assure compliance with this Order and for all other purposes related to this action.
WHEREFORE there bemg no just reason for delay, the CIerk of the Court is hereby dlrected to

enter this Consent Order of Permanent Injunction and Other Relief Against Defendant BP.
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FOR THE COMMODITY FUTURES. TRADING COMMISSION
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202-418-5356

ethA_

v i
Paul Ha}}eck\!(/
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Joseph Konizeski
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%dy Lee

Trail Attorney, Division of Enforcement
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FOR BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA INC.
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ATTACHMENT A

BP COMPLIANCE AND ETHICS

I OVERVIEW
* Within nlnety (90) calendar days of the entry of the Consent Order of Pennanent
o InJunctlon and Other Rehef (hereinafter “Order” ) agdinst BP Products North Amenca Inc.
(“BP”), BP and any BP sub31d1ary or BP business group or entity that trades commodities with or
provides cemmodlty services for_ BP in the Unlted States (hereinafter referred to as “BP Entities”)
agree to 1mn1ement and maintain an effective commodity trading comphance and ethics program
(“Comphance Program™).
I COMPLIANCE PROGRAM
1. BP and the BP Entities shaﬂ include,' at-a minimum,r the following provisions in -
their Cdmpliance Prognam: |
a. Conlpliance controls"design_ed to detect; identify, and preyent violati.ons of the
applicaBle provisions of the Commodity Exchange Act, 7U.S.C. § 1, et seq., |
(“-CEA”)‘ or Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC” or
~ “Commission”) regulations;
b. Clearly articulated- corporate policiee procedures, and standafds designed to -
prevent and detect v1o]at10ns of the CEA or Comm1ssmn regulatlons
(“Comphance Code”)
c. The assignment of one or more senior corporate ofﬁcmls of BP and each of the

BP Ent1t1es who shall report d1rectly to BP’s U S. Comphance and Ethics
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compliance with the Compliahce Code as well as other aspects of the

Compliance Program of BP and the BP Entities;

. The effective communicatioﬁ to all BP and BP Entities’ directors, officers, -

employees, agents and consultants of corporate and compliance policies,
standafds, and procedures regardihg compliance with thelCEA and

Commission regulations;

. Training concerning the requirements of the CEA and CFTC regulations, on an

annual basis to all directors; officers, traders, book leaders, trading managers,

trading regulation personnel, risk managers, compliance personnel and the

~ head of each BP Entity, certifying compliance therewith;

. A clearly articulated corpbrate policy that requires any director, officer,

emP]ojee, agent or consultant that is aware of any violation of any law or any

unethical conduct that has not been reported to an appropriate federal, state or

: ‘municipal agency, to report such violation or conduct to a BP or BP Entity

compliance officer or the Monitor;

- A clearly articulated corporate policy that requires the Compliance Division to

affirmatively investigate potential violations of the CEA or CFTC regulations;

- A reporting system, including a “Helpline” for directors, officers, employees,

agents, and consultants to report suspected violations, anonymously if the

- reporter so desires, of the Compliance Code or suspected criminal conduct;

and,

i. Appropriate disciplinary procedures to address matters involving violations or

suspected violations of the CEA, CFTC regulations, or the Compliance Code.
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2. In particular, BP and the BP Entmes agree that the Compliance Program shall
include or othervwse integrate the followmg tradlng related provisions:

a. The establishment within sixty (60) calendar days of the entry of thjs‘O.rder of
a both a physical and clectroniC-centralizéd location or soufce of trade

- regulation infénnation that contains all current processes, policies, and training
materials related to trading. This silall include, at _aminimum, a consolidated
‘trade regulation manual that incorporates the Compliance Code, tréining
' cun*iculﬁm, related requirements and information regarding the trade
monitoring tools employed by BP or the BP Entities;

b. A clearly articulated and uniform corporate policy reqﬁin'ng trading transaction
information, including déal entries, executions, and trading bench strategy
documents, to be preserved; |

c._.A clearly articulated and uniform corporate policy c,ontihuing the established
‘practice éf recording external telephone lines, Insfant Messages (IMs),
electronic maii (“email”), and any other authorized mgthods of
éomlﬁunication, for traders, book leaders, and trading managers;

d A clearly articulated and uniform corporate policy continuing the established

' practice of monitoring external telephone lines, IMs, email, and any other
auihorized methods of communication for traders, book leaders, and trading
managers; |

e. A clearly artjculated and uniform corporate policy_regardin g out of office

| dealing in which traders execute deals when not on the premises of BP or the

premises of a subsidiary;
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f. A clearly articﬁlated and uniform corporate policy requiring compliance with
the tradieg guidelines to be a component iﬁ the compensation calculus for all
traders,_book leaders, and trading managers, and senior management in the
trading function; and,

g. A clearly articulated and uniform corporate policy regarding. document
retention and destruction policies and the appointment of a designated
department respo_{lsible for records management for BP and the BP Entities.

3. In addition, BP and the BP Entities agree that the Compliance Code shall include
'_the following 'requireﬁente:_ |
a. A policy continuing the established practice ef recording all external
telephone linee, IMs, email, and any other authorized methods of
corh_munication of .all traders, book leaders, and trading managers; and |
b. A policy continuing the established practice of retaining all recordings of |
external telephone lines, IMs, email, and any other authorized methods of
cc’ﬁnmunication of all traders, book leaders, and tradjng managers, for a period
of five (5) years, unless required by law to be maintaiﬁed for a ]enger period
| of tifne, |
III. COMPLIANCE AND TRADER TRAINING
4. _BP’S and the BP Entities” compliance training and trader trairﬁng guidelines shall
inciude, at a minimum, the following:- |
a. Man_datory orientation training for all directors, officers, tradere, book leaders,v
.  trading rﬁanagers, trading regulation personnel, I]Sk managers, compliance

~ personnel, legal personnel, and the head of each subsidiary business, division
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and groilp, to be completed Within one hﬁndred and twenty (120) days of the
employee"s start dafé in oﬁe of the afore_mentio_nedl positions, regarding
corporate and compliénce policies, standards, and procedurgs regarding the
-CEA, CFTC regﬁlations, énd uU.s. anti-manipulation laws;

. Anﬁual training for all directors, ofﬁcgrs, ,traders, book leaders, tréding
managers, trading regulation personnel; risk managers, 'corhpliance persénne] _
and fhe head of each BP Entity;

; Training regarding co;pora'te and compliance policies, standards, and
procedures regarding_ﬂle CEA and CFTC regulations to be included in the BP
Trader Assessment Course or any similar BP or BP Entity trader assessment
program;, and, |

. The creation ahd maintenance of attendance records and documentation that

required individuals have fulfilled their compliance training.
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ATTACHMENT B

INDEPENDENT MONITOR
L ENGAGEMENT OF THE MONITOR
1. ' ' Engagemeﬁt. BP,Products North America Inc. (“BP”) agrees to engage an
- independent monitor (“Mdnitor”) within sixty (60) calendar days of the eﬁtry of the Consent
Order of P.ennanent'lnjunction and Other Rélief Against Defendant -BP (“Consenf Order” or
| “Ordér”) to oversee BP’s and any BP subsidiary’s; or BP business grqup’s or entity’s that
.o.perateslwithv or provides services for BP (h‘eré.inaﬂer collectively referred to as the “BP
Entities”) in the United States, compliance ﬁdth their obligations under the Order, to review and
monitor the effectiveness of BP and the BP Entities’ compliance controls as they pertain to ﬁe
applicable anti-rﬁaﬁii)ulatipn and reporting provisions of the Commodity Exchange Act, 7
U.S.C. § 1, et seq., (“CEA”) and applicable Commodity Futures Trading Commission “CFTC™)
' regulations, and to make such recommend_ati_ons‘ as th¢ Monitor believes are necessary to comply
- with the Order.

2. Consultation and Selection. BP America, the CFTC, and the U.S. Department of

Justice, Fraud Section (the “Department”) shall use mutual best efforts to identify a mutually ‘

acceptable person, who, subject to the approval of the Court, shall serve as theé Monitor.

3. Period of Eﬁgagement. BP agrees that tﬁe period of e'r'lg.agement for the Monitor
is three (3) years from the date of the.engagement of the Monitor, prdvided however, that, in the
event that the CFTC or the Départment detennines, in their ‘sole discretion, that BP has knowingly
violated ény provision of this' Consent Order, a one-year egtension of thé monitorship may be
imposed by either the CFTC or the Department, and, in the event of ladditi'onall violations, such

~ additional 65&1%& extens1onsasappropnate, but in no event shall the total term of the
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monitorship exceed five (5) years. Any extension of the monitorship pen'odextends all terms of
this Consent Order for an equivalent period. |

4. Replacement. If the Monitor resigns or is terminated by the Department or the
_CFTC or is otherwise unable to fulﬁll his or her obhgatlons as set out herein, BP, shall within
thirty (30) calendar days nominate a proposed replacement to the Department and the CFTC for
approval. If, after an additional thirty (30) day period, the parties are unable to identify a niutually
acceptable person, then the Department, in consultation uﬁth die CFTC, shall prop_ose two
candidates to BP for selection. | |

5. Hirng Authon'ty and Compensation. The Monitor shall have the authon'ty to

employ legal counsel, consultants investigators, experts and any other personnel reasonably -
necessary to assist in the proper discharge of the Monitor’s duties, as specified herein. BP shall
have the opportunity to perform routine conflict checks on individuals or entities the Monitor
proposes to engage and within two weeks, BP shall advise the Monitor if any conflicts exist. The
vMonitor shall not engage any individual or entity as to which BP reasonably believes a conflict
: exists. The compensation and expenses of the Monitor, and any persons hired by the Monitor
| pursuant to his or her authority under the Order, shal_libe paid by BP or its successor. The
Monitor, and any persons hired by the Monitor, shall be compensated in accordance with their
rrespective, typical hourly rates or a.reasonable fee determined by the Monitor.
6. NoI Affiliation. The Mo‘nitor 1s not, and shall notbe treated for any purpose, as an
officer, employee, agent, or affiliate of BP, the BP En_tities, the Department, or the CFTC. ‘The'
" Monitor shall not OVtIC any ﬁduciary duties or. ot].ierduties or ob]igations’oi’ any kind to BP and the

BP Entities, or their directors, officers, employees, shareholders, bondholders or creditors.

" Moreover, BP and the BP Entities shall not employ the Monitor for a period of five (5) years
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commencing on the date of the Monitor’s engagement Further BP and the BP Entities shall not
employ any entity or individual hired by the Monitor to fulfill its respon31b1ht1es dunng the
Momtor s engagement, either directly or indirectly, for a period of two (2) years, commencing on
the date that the entity or individual’s' engagement terminates, without prior appr_,oval from the
Department and the'CFTC. E

7. No Attorney-Client Relationship It shall be a condition of the Monitor’s

retention that the Monitor is 1ndependent of BP and the BP Entities and that no- attomey-chent
relatlonship shall be formed between them. BP shall not claim any work-product privilege as to

documents created by the Monitor or by any agents of the Mon1tor

- 8. Indemniﬁcation. BP shall provide an appropriate 1ndemniﬁcation agreement to

the Monitor with respect to any claims arising out of the performance of the Monitor’s duties.

9. No Defense Premised on Monitor’s Findings. BP and the BP Entities agree that
the Monitor’s findings do not constitute a defense to any action that the CFTC or the Department - '
may elect to bring against BP or the BP Entities for such activities.

10. Notice of the Monitor. Within thirty (30) days of the engagement of the Monitor,

BP and the BP Entities shall advise its employees i n writing of the engagement of the Monltor the
Monitor’s powers and dutles pursuant to this Order, and the abihty of employees to commumcate

_ w1th the Monitor through OpenTalk and a method of communicating by telephone and/or email
directly ‘with the Monitor. Such notice shall inform employees that they may' communicate 'with '
the Monitor anonymously' or otherwise, and that no director officer, employee agent or .’
consultant shall be penahzed in any way for providing information to the Momtor In addition,
such notice shall direct that, if any director, ofﬁcer, employee, agent or 'consultant is _aware of any

v101at10n ofanylaw relating to Manipulative Conduct, as defined by paragraph 12 of the Consent
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Order that has not been reported to an apprbpn'ate federél, state or local agency, the director,
ofﬁcer, employee, agent or consultant is obligated to report such vielation or condltct to Bf, aBP
Entity, a BP compliance officer, or the Monitor. Such notice shall also include directions that
cooperation with the Monitor is mandatory. |
11.  Cooperation. BP and the BP Entities’ shall direct their directors, officers,

employees, agents, and consultants to cooperate With‘.the Monitor_ in the execution of his ot her
duties under the Order. If, in the Monitor’s discretion; a director, officer, employee, agent, or

* consultant of BP or the BP Entities fails to cooperate with the Monitor, the Monitor may notify
BP, the Dei;artment and the CFTC. The Commission may evaluate BP’S response to the
uncooperative individual in evaluating BP’s eooperation»under this Order. Further, BP and the BP
:Entities agree that any directer, ofﬁcers, employees, agente, and consultants may communicate.
with the Monitor anonymously atld that no director, officer, employee, agent or consultant shall
be penalized in any way for providing information to the Monitot'. In additiot), if any director,
officer, employee, agent or consultan_t is aware of any violation of anyl]aw relating to |
Manipulative Conduct that has not been reported to an appropriate federal, state or local agency,
the director, officer, employee, agent or consultant is obligated to report such violation or conduct
to BP or e BP Entity, a BP compliance officer, or to the Monitor.
Il OVERSIGHT AUTHORITY AND DUTIES

A.  Monitor Responsibilities

The Monitor shall:
' 12.. Review and monitor BP’s cempliance with the Order.
13. Review, evaluate, and monitor BP and the BP Entities’ compliance policies and

- procedures to ensure they are genetétly effective in preventing and detecting (1) any potential act
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of nianipulation, attempted manipulation, cornen'ng_;- or attempted cornering relating to the price of
a “commodity,” as comfnodify is defined in Section 1(a) of the CEA, in interstate commerce, -or

for future delivery; (2) any delivery of false, mlsleadmg or knowmgly inaccurate 1nfonnat10n that
could tend to affect the price of a commodlty in interstate commerce and/or 3) any false or
mlsleadmg .sta’Fements made to any registéred entity (collectively _referred to as “Manipulative
Condnct”), by any BP or BP Entity director, officer, empl'oyee, or agent. ThJS shall include a
review» of the Integrated Supply & Trading (“IST”) group’s.policies and procedures as they apply
to BP and the BP Entities. | |

14. Review, evaluate, and monitor BP and the BP _Entities’ commodity ;tradin g
compliance programs, including but not limited to trading surveillance systeme, risk management
systems, regu]atory training; and compliance training, to ensure they are generally effective in
preventing and d.etecting any Manipulatiye Cenduct by any BP or BP Entity director; officer,
en’iployee, or agent. -

15. Review, _evaluate; and monitor BP and the BP Entities” commodity trading
compliance structure, composition, and resources, including but not limited to, compliance
personne] compensation, compliance personnel recruitment programs, and compliance personnel
training, to ensure the compliance group or ﬁmction has the appropriate authority, structure, and
resources to be generally effective in preventing and detecting any Maninulative Conduct by any
BP or BP Entity director, officer, employee, or agent. |

16. Review, evaluate, and monitor BP and the BP Entities’ commodity trading
policies, procedures, and practices, inelnding but nof limited to any trader recruitment, training,
compensatmn and evaluatlon process, to determine if they are generally effectlve to prevent and

wdetect any Mampu]a’ﬂve Conduct by any BP or BP Entlty dlrector ofﬁcer employee or agent
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17_'. Pursuant to paragraphs 31 .and.32 of this Attachment to the Consent Order,
cenduct an _audit of BP and the BP Entities’ commodity trading operations for the purpose of
testing and evaluating the effectiveness of BP.an_d the Bi’ Entities’ trading compliance systems,
policies and programs. This shall necessarily include an operational audit of the IST group’s
operations as it pertains and functions within the commodity trading operations ef BP and the BP
Entities. |

~18. Review acti'vities relating to the commodity trading operatiens of BP and the BP
Entities to provide reeommendations for corrective _action and to evaluate the eifectiveness of
implemented recommendations. |

19. The Monitor’s authority and duties are to be broadly construed.

B. Written Reports and Recommendations

20. BP agrees that during the three (3) year period of engagement, and any extensions
thereof the Monitor shall prepare work plans for assessment, an initial report, and at least two (2)
follow-up reports (subject to extension) as descnbed below

1. Work Plans |

21. i\.Vithin sixty (60) days of the engagement of the Monitor, the Monitor shall
prepare a written work.plan. VIn .order to condttct an effective initial review and to fulIy understand
any existing deficiencies in controls, policies and procedures related to cemmodities trading and
Manipulative Conduct, the Monitor’s initial work plan snal] include such steps as are necessary to
develop an understanding of the facts and circumstances surrounding the trading activities of BP
and the BP Entities. The work plan shall be submitted to the Department the CFTC, and BP for
rev1ew 1In the event BP objects to any part of the work plan the Department and the CFIC, shall

in thelr discretion determine the matter
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22. With réspect to ééch of the two (2) follow-up r-évieWs (subject to extension), the
Monitor shall prei:are a written work plan, which shall be submitted to BP, the Department, and
the CFTC for comment. In tﬁe event BP or the BP Entities objects to any part of the work plan,
the Department and the CFTC, shall, in their sole discrétion, determine the matter.

2. Initial Review _

23. In connection with the Monitor’s responsibility to determine whether BP and the
. BP Entities’ policies and safeguards are generally effective in detecting and deterring
Manipulative. Conduct, the Monitor shall conduct an initial review and prepare an initial report
assessing the areas described in Section II. A. hefein. |

7 24, In conﬁection-with the initial review, the Monitor shall issue a written report
within one hundred ei ghty (180) calendar days from the date of the Monitor’s eﬂgagement Setting
forth the Monitor’s assessmeﬂt and making recofnmendations, if _ansl, reasonably designed to |
improve the poIicies" and procedufes of BP vand_the BP Ehtities-for detecting and rdeterring
Maxﬁpulgtive Conduct.- The Monitor shall provide the report to the Department, the CFTC, the
Vice-President for Compliance and Ethics, BP América Inc,, _the Board of D.irectors of BP
America, and the Board of Directors of BP Products North Arﬁerica. The Monitor may extend the
time peﬁod fqr issuance of the report with prior written approval of the Departm_ent and fhe
| lCFTC. |

25. The initial report shall ciesén'be- the Monitor’s assessment of BP and ‘th.e BP -
Entities in the areas described in Section I1. A. herein. The report shali include the Monitor’s
methodology, ‘ihformation relied upon, and basi§ forvassessmlent. In addition, in undertaking the

assessment and review, the Monitor shall formulate conclusions based on, among other things:
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26.

. inspection of documents, including all the policies and procedures relating to the

trading and compliance prbgra'ms designed to detect and deter Manipulative

Conduct; :

. ‘meetings with and interviews of employees, ofﬁcéfs, and directors of BP and the

BP Entities, and any other relevant persons;

an on-site observation of BP and the BP Entities’ trading surveillance systems,

1isk management systems, and telephonic and instant message recording system;

and

. analyses, studies and testing of the trading and compliance programs designed to

detect and deter Manipulaﬁve Co.nduct at BP and the BP Entities.

The initial report shall also contain any recommendation the Monitor may have

with regard to matters assessed, setting forth why such recommendations are reasonably designed

to improve BP’s and the BP Entities’ compliance with the anti-manipulation and record keeping

provisions of the CEA.

27.

- Within sixty (60) calendar days after receiving the Monitor’é report, BP and the

BP Entities shall adopt all recommendations in the report; provided, however, that within thirty

(30) calendar days after receiving the report, BP shall:

e. advise the Monitor, the CFTC, and the Department in writing of any

recomumendations that BP or the BP Entities considers unduly burdensome,

~ impractical, or unreasonably costly; and

_propose in writing an alternative policy, procedure or system designed to achieve

the same objective or purpose or provide an explanation as to the reason for
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.disagreement regarding the objective or purpose of the Monitor’s
recommendation. | |
With respect to any recommendation that BP or the BP Entities considers unduly burdensome,
nnpractlcal or costly and that BP provides written notice of such BP and the BP Entltles need
not adopt the Momtor s recommendation within the aforementioned sixty (60) day time penod
As to any recommendation on vifhlch BP and the Momtor do not agree, suoh. parties shall attempt
. to reaeh an agreement \irithin thirty (30) calendar days after BP serves the Wiitten notice and
proposed alternative. In the event BP and the Monitor are unable to agree on an alternative
proposal, BP shall submit the issue end supporting to docnmentatiOn in writing to the Department )
and the CFTC within thirty (30) calendar days of the Monitor’s decision to reject BP ’s proposed
| alternati-ve. The Departmentand the CFTC’s determination on the issue shall be binding. With
' respect to any recommendation thetthe Monitor determines cannot reasonably-be implemented
within sixty (60) calendar days after BP receives the report, the I\/ionitor may ei(tend the time
period for implementation with prior written approval of the Department and tiie CFTC.

28. All'i\/lonitor recommendations' that are mutually acceptable to both the Monitor
and BP shall be employed by BP and the BP Entities for at least a period of (3) years from the
time of the implem_entation.

3. Annual Reviews

29. The Monitor shail -undertake two (2) follow-up reviews to furti-ler monitor and

assess whether the policies and procedures of BP and the BP Entities are reasonabiy designed to

detect and prevent violations of the anti-manipulétion provisions of the CEA.

46



30.

With regard to the second assessment and report, the time frames and

requirements .s.et forth above .in Paragraphs 23 through 28 shall apply, except for the following

modifications:

C.

31.

a.

The work plan for the second assessment shall be submitted to the parties by the
Monitor no later than sixty (60)'calendar days from the first anniversary of the

date of entry of the Order. The work plan for the third assessment shall be

submitted to the parties by the Monitor no later than sixty (60) calendar days from

the second ‘anniversary of the entry of the Order;

The second assessment shall be completed no later than one hundred eighty (180)
calendar days from the first annivers'aryef the date of the entry of the Order. The
third aésesstnent shall be completed no later than one hundred eighty (180)
calendar days from the second anniver.sat'y of the date of the entry of the Order;
and |

In addition to the minimal requirements set forth in Paragreph 25, the second and
third assessments shatl include a test of the effectiveness of BP and the BP
Entities’ compliance programs and policies. |

Operaﬁonal Audit |

The Monitor shall conduct an audit of BP and the BP Entities’ commodity trading

operations for the purpoée of testing and evaluating the effectiveness of BP and BP Entities’

trading compliance systems, policies and programs. In determining the scope of the audit, the

Monitor shall review and consider KPMG’s Report of its-review of BP’s Integrated Supply &

Trading Compliance Program, but shall retain discretion to determine the scope of any additional

auditﬁx;vork.
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32. The Monitor, in his or her discreﬁon, may engage an aﬁdif firm with the necessary
resources to eonduct the operational audit. | |

D. InVesﬁgation of Potenﬁai Vielations -

33. The Monitor shall keep records of his or her activities.

34 " At any time during the course of the engagement, should the Monitor discover
any evidence indicating that BP of the BP Entiﬁes, its‘ofﬁcers, directors, erhployees or agents
have violated pfoﬁsions of the CEA, the CFTC’slregulations, or have violated a.ny proﬁsion of
this Order, the Monitor shall notify BP, unless the Monitor in his or her discretion determines
ﬁotiﬁcation directly to the Department and the CFTC is necessary and approﬁriate. BP shall have
thirty (30) days from the date of notice from the Monitor to.provide notice to the Department and
the CFTC of the elle'ged violation. If BP fails to proﬁde notice to the Department and the CFTC
within tﬁe thirty (30) day period, the Monitor shall then report the matter directly to the
Department and the CFTC. If a matter is reported by the Monitor to the DepMent and/er the
CFTC, the Monitor shall provide the Department and the CFTC any and all information relating
to the evidence or alleged vielations. This Paragraph shall not preclude the Monitor frer_n
discussing other related matters directly With fhe Department or the CFTC.

35. If at any time during the course of the engagement, the Menitor diseovers
evidence of a potential violation of the CEA or 'CI;'TC regulations that occurred after the aate of
this Agreement, the Monitor shall have the discrétion to investi gate and report to the Deﬁar_tment
and the_ CFTC about the matter. At the sole discretion of either the Department or the CFTC,
ejther gevernment egency may direct the Monitor to discoﬁtinue the investi.ga.tion to allow for a

_government investigation to commence.
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| 36. BP agrees that during the engagement of the Moniter,' the l\/lonitor shall have the |

discretion to review activities that occurred prior to the date of the agreement for the purpose of
informing him or herself of the relevant facts to develop prospective recommendatlons for
corrective action.
. ACCESS TO INFORMATION |

37. BP and the BP Entities shall cooperate ﬁl]ly with the Monitor and the Monitor |
shall have the authority to take such reasonable steps, in his or her view, as may be neeessary ‘to
be fully informed about the operations of BP and the BP Entities within the scope of his or her
responsibilities as set forth'in.this Order. Te that end, BP and the BP Entities_shall provide the
Monitor: | |

g. access to all files, books, records, persennel, and facilities that fall within the
scope of responsibilities of the Monitor pursuant to this Order, subject to a
legitimate claim of attorney-client privilege;-'

h. the right to interview any director, officer, employee, agent or eonsultant ef BPor’ |
the BP Entities and to participate in'any meeting concerning any mattervwithin or
relating to his or h'er_ jurisdiction; and | |

1.. the right to observe BP or the BP Entities btisiness _operati_ons that fall within the
scope of responsibilities of the Monitor pursuant to this Order, subjeet toa
legitimate claim of attomey—client privilege. |

38. If BP ot the BP Entitles agree to prov1de the Momtor with access to Privileged
Materials the Momtor will agree (a) not to assert that BP’s or' the BP Entities’ provision of the
Privileged Materials in any way constitutes a waiver by BP or the BP Entities of the attorney-

* client pi;i\}ilegeand/o‘r»the work-product doctrineand (b) to maintain the conﬁdentiality of the
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Privileged Materials and not to provide them to any third party except to the extent that
disclosure 1s required by law or may be necessary in furtherance of the Monitor’s dlscharge of his ’
-~ or her official duties and responsibilities.

39 In the event tliat BP and the BP Entities seek to withhqld from the Monitor access |
to Privileged Materials, then: |

" j. BP and the BP Entities shall provide written notice to the Cor_nrnission and .the _
Monitor of their intention to Withhold access to iriformation’, docunients, records,
facilities and/or employees based upon an assertion of a valid claim of attorney— _

-client privilege (ir application ef the attomey Work-;iroduct doctrine. Such notice
shall include a general description of tiie nature of the information, documents,

records, facilities and/or employees that are being with]ield, as well as the basis of
the clairn.

40.  Failure of any BP or BP Entity director, officer, ernployee or agent to cooperate
with the Monitor may, m the sole discretion of the Monitor, serve as a basis for the Monitor to
refer t}ie non-cooperating individual to BP or the appropriate BP Entity for disciplinary action.

| 41. The Monitor shall take appropriatel steps to' maintain the confidentiality of any’
information entrusted to him or her while executing his or her duties pursuant to this Order and
shall share such information only with the Department, the CFTC, and individuals or entities hired
by him or her. The Monitor shall also take appropriate steps toi ensure that any consultants,
entities, and/or individuals engaged by him or her to assist wit}i the duties pursuant to the t)rder
shall rnaintain the conﬁdentiality of information obtained while executing his or her duties

42.' Any reports and 1nformat10n that are prov1ded to the Department and/or the CFTC

by the Monitor shall be filed under seal with the Court. The Department and the CFTC shall
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" maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by the Monitor to the Department or the
CFTC, including the periodic reports required pursuant to the Order, except. to the extent that
disclosure may be necessary by the Department or the CFTC in c_onnéction with the discharge of

their official duties.
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